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Chairman’s Statement
FEWRSE

Dear Shareholders,

OVERVIEW

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”) of Computer And
Technologies Holdings Limited (the “Company”), | am glad to present the
unaudited interim results of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
the “Group”) for the six-month ended 30 June 2014. The Group's
consolidated net profit attributable to shareholders for the reporting
period increased by 3.1% to HK$22.6 million (2013: HK$21.9 million). The
basic earnings per share was 9.37 HK cents (2013: 9.10 HK cents) or an
increase of 3.0% compared with the same period last year.

The Group’s overall revenue increased by HK$13.7 million, or 15.1% to
HK$103.9 million despite of the continuing decrease in hardware sales as
a result of the Group’s business transformation strategy. It is encouraging
that the improvement in turnover was spread across the software and
solution services business with recurring nature. Correspondingly, the
Group's overall gross profit rose by HK$5.1 million, or 10.0% to HK$56.1
million.

During the reporting period, the Group recorded a foreign exchange loss
of HK$5.4 million (2013: foreign exchange gain of HK$3.4 million) and a
revaluation gain in investment properties of HK$7.1 million (2013: HK$2.6
million). Despite of the sharp decrease in non-operating incomes and
gains, the Group still managed to deliver an improved overall result.

The Group has been maintaining robust liquidity position with strong
cash on hand. In view of the sustained healthy financial position and the
improving business trend, the Board recommended the distribution of an
interim dividend of 7 HK cents (2013: 6 HK cents).

BUSINESS REVIEW
Application Software

The Group'’s Application Softwarel" business managed to deliver a solid
performance in the first half of 2014.

The Group’s HRM" product suite continued its leading position in the
local market with expanding customer base. It is delighted to see more
and more market leaders in various industries, including a gigantic mobile
service provider and reputable financial institutions, are entrusting our
HRM products. Moreover, the success of our HRM product suite also
extended to other sectors including transportation, statutory bodies and
health care.
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Chairman’s Statement (continued)
FEHREE)

BUSINESS REVIEW (CONTINUED)

Application Software (continued)

The HRM product suite had been awarded with the China Outstanding
Software Product Awards (“COSPA”) for the third consecutive year. As
such the awarded product is entitled to label as “China Outstanding
Software Product”, the highest honor for national class software products
in China, for the following three years. The Group believed that the award
winning HRM product would widen the exposures and opportunities in
expanding its market in the Mainland China.

The Group is implementing its EPM[ software for a major transportation
authority in Hong Kong SAR who will be launching the related
application in this year. Riding on the unique product features and
enlarging customer base, our EPM product line continues to make steady
contributions to the Group's revenue.

In addition, the acquisition of Vitova Limited (“Vitova”) in May 2013 has
strengthened the software products offering and boosted the earnings
of the Group’s Application Software business. Integration of Vitova's
EIM™ resources into the Group’s Application Software team and further
enhancement on the related product suite has progressed well during the
period of review.

Looking ahead, the Group will continuously putting efforts to develop
more functions and features on its products suite to fulfill customers’
needs. The management is optimistic that the strong market demand and
the enlarged installation base coupled with the ever-enhanced product
suite will provide the Group with growing and sustainable income stream.

e-Service and related business

The Group’s GETS™ business managed to deliver a steady result in
first half of 2014, amid the intense market competitions. In order to
minimize the impact caused from the expired partnership agreements
on GETS paper-to-electronic conversion service (“PCS”) with some trade
associations in April 2014, the Group has opened 10 new PCS outlets,
through partnership with a local listed printing business group. The
Group has also launched several new service plans to cater for the users
with diverse preferences.

The Group’s BPOB! business has recorded an improved result during the
reporting period. With the increasing acceptance of e-Marketing and
cloud-based services in the market, the Group will leverage its current
resources in GETS and BPO to provide combined offline and online
services and to explore additional new cloud services offering.
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Chairman’s Statement (continued)
FEREE)

BUSINESS REVIEW (CONTINUED)
Solutions Services

Leveraging on existing service agreements with Hong Kong SAR
Government and various enterprise customers, the Group’s Solutions
Services® business managed to deliver a satisfactory result in the first half
of 2014. In addition, the Group had successfully renewed and awarded
with new multi-year service agreements with a transportation authority in
Hong Kong in July 2014.

During the period under review, the Group has also grasped opportunities
and delivered various IT services based on the latest technologies in
the area of mobility and cloud computing. In order to improve domain
expertise and delivery proficiency, the Group will further hone its business
strategy to focus on providing services with selected technologies and in
the selected business domain.

Integration Services

The turnover of the Group’s Integration Servicess business had been
decreasing during the process of business transformation from a
hardware driven business to a software and solution driven business.
Fortunately, building on the service contract and new orders generated
from existing customers and a series of cost control and production
efficiency measures, the related business unit maintained a stable result
during the period of review.

Investments

The Group's investments segment recorded a segment result of HK$8.9
million (2013: HK$4.6 million). The improved result is mainly attributed to
the gain in fair value of the investment properties held.

The management foresees this segment will continue generating stable
rental and interest incomes but takes a cautious view on the investments’
short-term price fluctuations.

Corporate

The increased business activities with diversity and expanded work force
had outgrown the capacity of the premises located in Quarry Bay. To
address the issue and to accommodate the long term business growth,
the Group relocated its Hong Kong head office to Cyberport in June 2014.
The management believe that the new office will not only help improving
work efficiency but also provide more space for future growth.
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Chairman’s Statement (continued)
FEHREE)

PROSPECT

Looking forward, the Group will continuously invest in the successful
product suite to sustain its market leadership. The Group will also
accelerate the investment in expanding the software application
development teams in Mainland China in order to strengthen the Group's
competitiveness in the region and to expand the market share in a longer
term. Apart from the organic growth, the Group will continue to capture
any acquisition opportunities arising in the region to accelerate the
business development.

Footnotes:

n The Group's Application Services business engages in the provision
of application software and e-business services for enterprises
including (i) the provision of enterprise application software with
implementation and ongoing support services for Human Resource
Management (“HRM”), Enterprise Procurement Management
(“EPM") and Enterprise Information Management (“EIM")
(collectively the “Application Software”); and (ii) the Government
Electronic Trading Services (“GETS”), cloud services, business
process outsourcing (“BPO”) services and other related value added
services (collectively the “e-Service and related business”).

2 Since 2004, the Group has been granted a license (the “GETS
License”) from the Government for the provision of front-end
Government Electronics Trading Services for processing certain
official trade-related documents. The Group’s GETS License was
renewed in 2009 for operation of additional seven years until the
end of 2016.

Bl The Group’s BPO business comprises the provision of services
for the operations and support of specific business functions or
processes of customers.

“ The Group’s Solution Services business includes (i) Development
Services for the provision of IT solutions implementation and
application software development; and (ii) Managed Services for
the provision of IT and related operation/infrastructure outsourcing
services.

) The Group's Integration business covers the provision of IT systems

and network infrastructure with related design, implementation
and on-going support services.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

The Group's turnover for the period increased by 15.1% to HK$103.9
million (2013: HK$90.2 million). The increase in revenue was mainly due to

the organic growth of the Group’s core businesses and the contribution
of the Group’s newly acquired EIM product business in mid-2013.
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Chairman’s Statement (continued)
FEREE)

FINANCIAL REVIEW (CONTINUED)
Gross profit

Gross profit for the period was HK$56.1 million, around 10.0% higher than
same period last year (2013: HK$51.1 million). On the contrary, given the
need to increase resources for ongoing business development, the gross
profit margin dropped moderately to 54.0% (2013: 56.6%).

Non-operating incomes and gains, net (included other incomes and
gains, net, foreign exchange differences, net and fair value gains/
(losses), net)

Non-operating incomes and gains (included other incomes and gains,
net, foreign exchange differences, net, and fair value gains/(losses),
net) recorded a dramatic fall of 35.7% to HK$6.6 million (2013: HK$10.2
million). The fall was mainly due to the mixed results of the below factors.

Foreign exchange differences, net

Caused by the exchange rate fluctuation in Renminbi, the Group recorded
foreign exchange loss of HK$5.4 million in the first half of 2014 compared
to foreign exchange gain of HK$3.4 million recorded same period last
year.

Fair value gain on investment properties

The continuous appreciation in the local property market attributed to
the Group’s fair value gain of HK$7.1 million on the investment properties,
representing an increase of 178.0%, or HK$4.6 million compared with the
same period last year.

Expenses

The Group’s selling and distribution expenses approximately keep
constant from the same period last year.

The Group’s general and administrative expense increased slightly by
2.3% to HK$24.5 million (2013: HK$23.9 million). The mild change was a
combined effect of the costs incurred for office relocation and the cost
savings from the control measures imposed.
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Chairman’s Statement (continued)
FEHREE)

FINANCIAL REVIEW (CONTINUED)

Income tax expense

Income tax expense increased by 9.9% to HK$2.3 million as the assessable
profits subject to Hong Kong profits tax had been increased in current
reporting period. The tax charge at the Group’s effective tax rate was
around 9.4% in 2014, comparing with 8.9% in 2013. The effective tax
rate was lower than the Hong Kong statutory profits tax rate because
part of the income and gains, including dividend, bank interest incomes
generated in Hong Kong and fair value gain arising from the revaluation
of investment properties located in Hong Kong, were not subject to the
Hong Kong profits tax.

Net profit

Profit for the period attributable to shareholders increased 3.1% to
HK$22.6 million (2013: HK$21.9 million) while the net profit margin
(profit for the period attributable to shareholders divided by revenue)
was decreased to 21.7% from 24.3% recorded same period last year. The
decrease in net profit margin was echoed from the decrease in gross
profit margin and other operating incomes and gains, net as discussed
above.

Non-Current Assets

The Group’s non-current assets as at 30 June 2014 went up to HK$112.3
million from HK$99.2 million as at 31 December 2013. The change was
mainly attributable to (i) more than HK$6 million additions to leasehold
improvements, office furniture and fixtures for our new office in
Cyberport; and (ii) the appreciation of HK$7.1 million in market value of
investment properties held.

The Group reviewed and considered no impairment indication to the
carrying value of goodwill during the period under review.

Current Assets

The Group's current assets as at 30 June 2014 decreased slightly to
HK$411.2 million from HK$412.4 million as at 31 December 2013. The
change represented the net results of (i) the decrease in inventories kept
for the operation of Integration business; (ii) the decrease in available-
for-sale investments held as part of the Group’s investments in corporate
bonds reached their maturities; and (iii) the increase in trade receivables
as there was a multi-million billing issued to a government department in
late June for our ongoing maintenance services to be provided.

The Group maintains strict control over its outstanding trade receivables

and considers that trade receivables (net of impairment provision) were
all recoverable in the foreseeable future.
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Chairman’s Statement (continued)
FEREE)

FINANCIAL REVIEW (CONTINUED)

Current Liabilities

The Group's current liabilities as at 30 June 2014 increased to HK$109.5
million from HK$98.1 million as at 31 December 2013. The increase was
primarily due to the recognition of deferred income arising from various
maintenance services to be provided by the Group.

Segment Assets and Liabilities

Segment assets of Integration and Solutions Services business increased
in line with the increase in the accounts receivables of Solutions Services
business due from a government department as mentioned.

Segment liabilities of Integration and Solutions Services business
increased due to the recognition of deferred income arising from various
maintenance services to be provided by the Solution Services business.

Segment assets and segment liabilities of Applications Services business
noted no material change for the period of review.

Segment assets of Investments business decreased to HK$98.0 million
from HK$113.8 million as part of the Group’s investments in corporate
bonds, treated as available-for-sale investments, reached their maturity in
2014.

Equity

Total equity as at 30 June 2014 increased slightly by 0.1% to HK$412.8
million compared with HK$412.4 million as at 31 December 2013. The
change was mainly a result of the retention of the net profit earned in first
half of 2014, partially offset by the reclassification of 2013 final and special
dividends to current liability upon the approval of the dividends at the
annual general meeting held in May 2014.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 30 June 2014, the Group had pledged an investment property with
a fair value of HK$52.0 million (31 December 2013: HK$45.0 million),
listed debt and equity securities of HK$17.5 million (31 December 2013:
HK$18.0 million) and bank balances of HK$15.0 million (31 December
2013: HK$12.3 million) to secure certain general bank facilities including
guarantee/performance bonds facilities granted to the Group in
aggregate of HK$133.5 million (31 December 2013: HK$133.5 million)
of which HK$5.5 million (31 December 2013: HK$5.6 million) have been
utilised as at 30 June 2014.

Save as disclosed in the report, the Group has no material contingent
liabilities as at 30 June 2014.
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Chairman’s Statement (continued)
FEHREE)

FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND LIQUIDITY

As at 30 June 2014, the Group’s bank balances and cash (excluded
pledged bank deposit of HK$15.0 million) was HK$301.2 million (31
December 2013: HK$304.8 million).

All of the Group's on hand fundings are in Hong Kong dollars, Renminbi
and US dollars. The Group has not adopted any hedging policies at
the moment but will continue to monitor the Group’s foreign currency
exposure, including movements of Renminbi, and will consider taking
out appropriate measures to hedge significant foreign currency exposure
should the need arises.

As at 30 June 2014, the Group had no bank borrowings (31 December
2013: nil). The Group's current ratio representing current assets divided
by current liability was 3.8 (31 December 2013: 4.2) and the gearing
ratio, representing total liabilities divided by total assets, was 21.1% (31
December 2013: 19.4%).

REMUNERATION POLICY AND NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES

The Group remunerates its employees based on their performance,
working experience and prevailing market conditions.

The remuneration policies adopted for the six months ended 30 June
2014 are consistent with those disclosed in the Group’s 2013 Annual
Report. As at 30 June 2014, the Group employed approximately 283 full
time employees and 2 contract-based employees.

As at 30 June 2014, the Company operates a share option scheme and
a share award scheme for the purpose of providing incentives and
rewards to the employees who contribute to the success of the Group’s
operations.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS

Save as disclosed in the report, the Group has no significant investments
held as at 30 June 2014.

MATERIAL ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL OF
SUBSIDIARIES

Save as disclosed in note 16 regarding an acquisition of a subsidiary in
prior year, the Group did not have any material acquisition or disposal of
subsidiaries during the period.
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Chairman’s Statement (continued)
FEREE)

FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS OR
CAPITAL ASSETS

There was no specific plan for material investments or capital assets as at
30 June 2014.

DIVIDEND AND BOOK CLOSE

The Board recommends the payment of an interim dividend of 7 HK cents
(2013: 6 HK cents) per share for the six months ended 30 June 2014.

Reference is made to the announcement posted on 15 August 2014
regarding the change of period of closure of Register of Members, the
Register of Members of the Company will be closed from Monday, 1
September 2014 to Tuesday, 2 September 2014, both days inclusive,
during which period no transfer of shares will be registered. In order to
qualify the interim dividend, all transfers of shares accompanied by the
relevant share certificates and transfer forms must be lodged with the
Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Tengis Limited,
at Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong, for
registration no later than 4:30 p.m. on Friday, 29 August 2014.

The interim dividend will be distributed on or about 10 September 2014
to the shareholders whose names appear on the Register of Members of
the Company on Tuesday, 2 September 2014.

APPRECIATIONS

On behalf of the Group and the Board, | would like to extend my sincere
thanks and appreciations to our shareholders, customers, suppliers,
business partners and all the employees for their continuous supports
and trusts to the Group during the period.

By Order of the Board

Computer And Technologies Holdings Limited
Ng Cheung Shing

Chairman

Hong Kong, 14 August 2014

Computer And Technologies Holdings Limited
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Condensed Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

BRmeEmER

The Board of Directors (the “Board”) of Computer And Technologies
Holdings Limited (the “Company”) presents the unaudited condensed
consolidated interim financial results of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively, the “Group”) for the six months ended 30 June 2014,
together with the comparative amounts. These condensed consolidated
interim financial results have been reviewed by the Company’s audit
committee.

CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT

ORLOSS

M EREEERAR (AR NEFE([E
= BDE I ER I RANCIDS SN IEPNCIE T N
SEDEE—_ZT—NFERA=THIEREAZ
REEZRERER G M B R A E R LB
F o WEMRALGE T M B EECERART]
BEREZBEEH -

ERFESEER

For the six months ended 30 June

BEAA=1THILEAEA

2014 2013
—E-IF —T—=F
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REEZR) (REEZEZ)
Notes HKS$’000 HKS’000
it FAET FET
REVENUE PN 5 103,853 90,200
Cost of sales and services SHE R ARFEA AR (47,725) (39,150)
Gross profit ER 56,128 51,050
Other income and gains, net E WA Rz #58 5 5,308 4,729
Foreign exchange differences, net VE H =58 550 (5,355) 3,447
Fair value gains/(losses), net: NEEWE(ER)FEE
Financial assets at fair value through AV ELERARZ
profit or loss S EE (488) (505)
Investment properties WEMZ 7,112 2,558
Selling and distribution expenses HE RO R (13,333) (13,341)
General and administrative expenses —MRITERAX (24,482) (23,931)
PROFIT BEFORE TAX R A F 6 24,890 24,007
Income tax expense FriSEif X 7 (2,339) (2,128)
PROFIT FOR THE PERIOD ATTRIBUTABLE & A Bl#H AFE(L
TO OWNERS OF THE PARENT 7S HA R E A 22,551 21,879
EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO & 5% &R IR R FEML
ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE BRER
PARENT 9 HK cents &1l HK cents ;&1
Basic HK 9.37 9.10
Diluted BE 9.32 9.04

Details of the dividends proposed for the period are disclosed in note 8 to

the financial statements.

— T ERHRE
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Condensed Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

BRGFE EEH W E R

For the six months ended 30 June

BEAA=tHILEAEA

2014 2013
—E-EF —E—=4F
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REEZ) (REEFEZ)
HK$’000 HKS$’000
FET FET
PROFIT FOR THE PERIOD ZHA 8 % F 22,551 21,879
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME Ht2mEUWBA
Other comprehensive income to be reclassified R4 8 - Efh 2 EUW A E#r
to profit or loss in subsequent periods: DEEEREK
Available-for sale investments: AIEERE
Changes in fair value NEEES) 197 (936)
Exchange differences on translation of HMEGINEFSEEA 2B,
foreign operations =7 (1,221) 717
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR AHBH A ZE WA
THE PERIOD (1,024) (219)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE BATRBEEAEGEHEEZEBA
PERIOD ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF Wz
THE PARENT 21,527 21,660

Computer And Technologies Holdings Limited 14
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Condensed Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
AR S IR 3R

30 June 31 December
2014 2013
—E-mF =%
ANA=+H +=-A=+—H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(RBEZ) (fewiz)
Notes HK$’000 HKS'000
Kt FET FET
NON-CURRENT ASSETS ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - WE NMEE 10 11,368 5,244
Investment properties KEWE 57,252 50,140
Goodwill [EE=S 11 29,211 29,211
Available-for-sale investments AMEHERE 12 12,093 12,211
Financial assets at fair value through A EEIBHEARZ
profit or loss BT EE 13 2,397 2,416
Total non-current assets B EEAAE 112,321 99,222
CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Inventories EN 4,798 10,212
Trade and bills receivables FEUNE 5 8RN R BN 14 45,963 23211
Prepayments, deposits and other TENRIE - e Rk
receivables H b U IR 8,736 6,031
Due from contract customers S HEFHRIE 5,262 5,145
Available-for-sale investments AEHERE 12 7,512 29,862
Financial assets at fair value through A EKIBHEARZ
profit or loss B EE 13 15,100 15,569
Tax recoverable ARIEFHIR 7,598 5,338
Pledged bank deposits BERIRITIFK 15,014 12,270
Cash and cash equivalents RekFRREEE 301,214 304,777
Total current assets BB EAAE 411,197 412,415
CURRENT LIABILITIES mEBE
Trade payables, other payables JERTE SRR - Bt eI FIE
and accruals RFETFI8 15 (59,489) (64,486)
Due to contract customers EREHRFRIE (4,951) (5,008)
Deferred revenue FRIEWA (32,503) (18,198)
Tax payable JE S B TR (12,590) (10,392)
Total current liabilities B E [EAEE (109,533) (98,084)
NET CURRENT ASSETS MENEEFE 301,664 314,331
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES #AEERREEE 413,985 413,553
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FEREBEE
Deferred tax liabilities FELEFRITBEE (1,163) (1,135)
Net assets BEFE 412,822 412418
EQUITY e
Equity attributable to owners of the BRREE AEGER
parent
Issued capital BT 24,419 24419
Share premium account A1 5 (B AR 38,493 38,493
Contributed surplus NN 29,593 29,619
Shares held under the restricted share R IE A R SR 2B =t 2
award scheme A 2D (4,095) (4,735)
Other reserves HAbE 324,412 302,981
Proposed final and special dividends FEIR R B R FRIAR B = 21,641
Total equity ABtE 412,822 412418

=T R 15 R R R EER AR



Condensed Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

fRA4R S

EEREEIR

Attributable to owners of the parent

BAREEAEE
Other reserves
EfbfifE
Shares held
under the Available-
restricted Share- for-sale Proposed
Share share based investment Exchange final and
Issued  premium  Contributed award  payment  Goodwill revaluation  Reserve fluctuation  Retained special Total
capital  account surplus scheme reserve reserve reserve funds reserve profits  dividends equity
REERY
BUEL AHLE Bk
BB R FEHEE  ROAR REEf EiRE AR
BEe  EER AABR  ZRB wE HERR i RRES fE  RERN SURE  EREE
HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000
féx  FEr  TEr  FEn TEr TEn FEr  TEn FEr TEr FEL TER
At1January 2013 W=F-Z%-F-H 24529 38493 67,458 (5,590) 2379 (7.27) 940 733 4,645 252219 21,666 400,245
Profit for the period TR - - - - - - - - - 21879 - 21879
Other comprehensiveincomefor ~ ZAZIRFE M 2EYA :
the period:
Changesin fair value of available- A1 EREAFELE
for-sale investments - - - - - - (936) - - - = (936)
Exchange differences on BREBINERREEL
translation of foreign ERES
operations - - - - - - - - n7 - - 77
Total comprehensive incomefor ~ AEEZEIA 25
the period e = = = - = (936) . 7 08m - 2660
Repurchase of shares Bk (10) - (1854) = 5 = = - = S = (194)
Share award arrangements R BT - - - - 387 - - 2 - - - 387
Vesting of shares held underthe &R 5|1 EEEEIET
restricted share award scheme RiEE - - - 781 (781) - - - - - - -
Final and special 2012dividends S -F——FKH K
declared KRS - - 81 - - - - = = - (ngse)  (21585)
At30June 2013 RZZ-=FxA=1H 24419 38493 65,685 (4,809) 1,985 (7,227) 4 733 5362 274,098 - 398,743
Attributable to owners of the parent
BARERAER
Other reserves
RfbGifE
Shares held
under the Available-
restricted Share- for-sale Proposed
Share share based investment Exchange final and
Issued  premium  Contributed award  payment  Goodwill revaluation Reserve fluctuation  Retained special Total
capital  account surplus scheme reserve reserve reserve funds reserve profits  dividends equity
BEER
R %E THAE Bk
BEfT R THEE  ROAR REEf ESiRE FER
B EER AABR 2R WE HERRE i RRES BE REEN RARS EEAE
HKS$'000  HKS'000  HK$000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
fEr FEr TEr  FEn  TEr  TEn  FEr  TEn  FEn  TEn  FEm AR
At1January 2014 R=Z-mE-A-A 24,419 38,493 29,619 (4,735) 2,367 (7,227) 637 733 6,106 300,365 21,611 412,418
Profit for the period &R - - - - - - - - - 25 =i 22551
Other comprehensive incomefor ~ AZIRE M2 ENA :
the period:
Changes n fair value of available- 7 EIRE A FEZE)
for-sale investments - - - - - - 197 - - - - 197
Exchange differences on BEBNEBRREL .
translation of foreign EiZR
operations - - - - - - - - (1,221) - - (1,221)
Total comprehensiveincomefor ~ AHE 2 ARALE
the period - - - - - - 197 - (1,221) 22,551 - 21,527
Share award arrangements R Rz - - - - 544 - - - - - - 544
Vesting of shares held underthe AR5k ZEET AT
restricted share award scheme RiEE - - - 640 (640) - - - - - - -
Final and special 2013 dividends ~ EiE - —=FKHK
declared BARE - - (26) - - - - - - - (21641)  (21,667)
At30June 2014 WZZ-mERA=TH 2449 38,493 29,593 (4,095) 2,21 (7,227) 834 733 4,885 322,916 - h282

Computer And Technologies Holdings Limited
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Condensed Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

ERRGZERERER

For the six months ended 30 June 2014 HZ —Z — U4 X A =+ H L/~ E A

2014 2013
—B-mE —T=F
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REEZR) (CRigEZ)
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
(ifz3 FAETT FEIL
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES Z&EBcHERE
Profit before tax: MRELRT @A - 24,890 24,007
Adjustments for: R
Bank interest income RITHEUA 5 (5,396) (4,205)
Dividend income from listed investments EREZREWA 5 (296) (312)
Loss/(gain) on disposal of items of property, HEYE  BEIREEE Z
plant and equipment B8 () (1 36
Loss/(gain) on disposal of financial assets at HEEAFESEEARS
fair value through profit or loss P EEER, (W) 5 607 (162)
Fair value losses/(gains), net: NTEEE (W) 58
Financial assets at fair value through BAFELESEARZ
profit or loss B & E 488 505
Investment properties WEYE (7,112) (2,558)
Depreciation e 6 608 638
Impairment of trade receivables U B SRR FURIE 6 299 76
Reversal of impairment of trade receivables (ol fE N E B ERTURE 6 (196) (27)
Reversal of trade receivables written off (o] fiE U 5 BR T 85 6 - 4
Reversal of impairment of amounts due from [0l EW & 4B P 2 IERIE
contract customers 6 - (418)
Equity-settled share-based payment expenses %1 45 & DA M9~ 7/ FE 52 544 387
14,435 17,963
Decrease in inventories FERD 5,414 3,992
Increase in trade and bills receivables FEWE 5 BR 51 I FE W SRR 38 AN (22,855) (16,735)
Decrease/(increase) in amounts due from JEW A DB P FIER L, (3Ehn)
contract customers (117) 363
Increase in prepayments, deposits and TERRUR « &S RHALEWEUIR
other receivables 2 (2,705) (75)
Decrease in trade payables, other payables ERNE SRR - HiEAZRIER
and accruals FEET IR A (6,197) (9,257)
Increase/(decrease) in amounts due to ENAHEREFIEREN, i)
contract customers (57) 1,393
Increase in deferred revenue TRFEUYAIE AN 14,305 14,303
Cash generated from operations KEEEASR 2,223 11,947
Hong Kong profits tax refunded/(paid) RE (BB BAFIEH (2,260) 17
Overseas taxes paid EHUEINGIIE (33) (1,058)
Net cash flows from/(used in) KEEBRGE (TR RERE
operating activities HEE (70) 11,006
—OF R AR 17 Rl RS R E AR A A



Condensed Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (continued)

%Eﬁ ,.\/TAIE,E/)ILE%%(%?

For the six months ended 30 June 2014 #{Z == — G/ A =+ H LN EA

2014 2013
—E-mE T =F
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REEEZR) (REgEZ)
HK$’000 HKS'000
FET FET
Net cash flows from/(used in) KESEBAE, (TR BRERE
operating activities HER (70) 11,006
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES REZFB2RERE
Bank interest received BHERTTHE 5,396 4,205
Dividends received from listed investments B TR E FTIAR B 296 312
Purchases of items of property, plant and BEYE WMEMKEEE
equipment (5,556) (272)
Purchases of listed investments BE EMEE (3,000) (5,050)
Purchases of available-for-sale investments EEHIEERE - (48,270)
Acquisition of a subsidiary Wi —R B AR - 34
Proceeds from disposal of items of property, EE%¥ - WE MR IETE B TS
plant and equipment IR 1 2
Proceeds from disposal of financial assets at .':H%?;z N ELEERARZ
fair value through profit or loss WS EEFTSHIA 3,018 7116
Proceeds from disposal of available-for-sale HETH ﬁ’ihﬁﬁﬁﬁfk
investments 22,041 153
Decrease in pledged bank deposits BERRITIFFOR D 52 =
Decrease in non-pledged bank deposits with ~ UxBERSFRFIEAR BB =@ A =
original maturity of more than three months ~ EE#HF R
when acquired 15,609 16,318
Net cash flows from/(used in) investing BEEBRE(FrA)RERE
activities et 37,857 (25,452)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES BEEEzHERE
Repurchase of shares EEA D) - (1,964)
Dividends paid BERRE (21,667) (21,585)
Net cash flows used in financing activities REEHTRERERNE T (21,667) (23,549)
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) INCASHAND B E&RZERBEEEZ# M
CASH EQUIVALENTS (R )R8 16,120 (37,995)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning Byl HehERBECEE
of period 258,962 277,028
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net [ R &) 7 /2558 (1,277) 748
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END Eﬁ%zmﬁ RERELSEE
OF PERIOD 273,805 239,781
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH AND ReRERRSEELEBRDN
CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and cash equivalents as stated in the SRRAR A IS IRRR TR Z
condensed consolidated statement of BehERREEE
financial position 301,214 257,277
Pledged deposits for banking facilities granted #8772 H FA UL BB RS (R 21| A B TN HR8
by a bank with original maturity of lessthan =1 A Z fR1TR0 & FT & 173K
three months when acquired 8,872 14,012
Non-pledged time deposits with original IR R B R BB =B A 2
maturity of more than three months B B R
when acquired (36,281) (31,508)
Cash and cash equivalents as stated in the R AR EMERMTZ
condensed consolidated statement of ReRERRSEE
cash flows 273,805 239,781

Computer And Technologies Holdings Limited
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Notes to Fingncial Statements
B R R ML

For the six months ended 30 June 2014 HZ —Z — U4 X A =+ H L/~ E A

1.

3.1

— T ERHRE

CORPORATE INFORMATION

Computer And Technologies Holdings Limited is a limited liability
company incorporated in Bermuda. The registered office of the
Company is located at Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton
HM11, Bermuda. The principal place of business of the Company is
located at Level 10, Cyberport 2, 100 Cyberport Road, Hong Kong.

During the period, the Group was involved in the following
principal activities:

. sales of computer networks and system platforms, the
provision of system and network integration, information
technology (“IT") solutions development and implementation,
and related maintenance services;

. provision of enterprise software applications and related
operation outsourcing, business process outsourcing and
e-business, and related maintenance services; and

. property and treasury investments.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

This unaudited condensed consolidated interim financial
information of the Group for the six months ended 30 June 2014
has been prepared in accordance with the applicable provisions of
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited and Hong Kong Accounting Standards
("HKAS”") 34 “Interim Financial Reporting” issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA").

The unaudited condensed consolidated interim financial
information does not include all the information and disclosures
required in the annual financial statements, and should be read in
conjunction with the Group’s annual financial statements for the
year ended 31 December 2013.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the
unaudited interim condensed consolidated financial information
are consistent with those followed in the preparation of the Group’s
annual financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2013,
except for the adoption of the following new and revised Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) (which also included
HKASs and Interpretations) that affect the Group and are adopted
for the first time for the current period’s financial statements.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
g S B e )

For the six months ended 30 June 2014 #{Z == — G/ A =+ H LN EA

3.2 ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG 3.2 WA RLETEBUERE

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS 28|

The HKICPA has issued a number of new and revised HKFRSs
and amendments to HKFRSs that are first effective for the
current accounting period of the Group. Of these, the following
developments are relevant to the Group's financial statements:

HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and

Amendments to HKFRS 10,

BRGNS REME THA ML E
AIEBUBREENANRBEVBRE
R Z1ER] - BEEAREFTRAEE
ZAGT M ERER - Hep - AT
RENEEMEHRERER -

BEYBREER  BAMBREERE0

HKAS 27 (2011) HKFRS 12 and HKAS 27 (2011) F105% - BEME % BEUBRSEL
Amendments — Investment Entities WEERE 125K F1RREBL AL
BReTENSEY  FR(ZT—F)
(Z2—F)EIA —KEFTE2ER
HKAS 32 Amendments Amendments to HKAS 32 Financial BEERERS  BASENERRIHK
Instruments: Presentation — BEA TR : 25| #8005
Offsetting Financial Assets and BRERGFEREZER]
Financial Liabilities
HKAS 36 Amendments Amendments to HKAS 36 Impairment BEoENE06 BRI EAFEREE
of Assets — Recoverable Amount CHEN - REHGHEE
Disclosures for Non-Financial Assets AR5 1EE]
HKAS 39 Amendments Amendments to HKAS 39 Financial BEERE%  BASEFEORT K
Instruments: Recognition and CHEN IR : R RHE—1T
Measurement — Novation of GTRZEERH VS
Derivatives and Continuation of FHEZREE ZERT
Hedge Accounting
HK(IFRIC)-Int 21 Levies BEERMBERE HF

The adoption of the above new and revised HKFRSs in the current
interim period has had no material effect on the amounts reported
in these condensed consolidated financial statements and/or
disclosures set out in these condensed financial statements.

Computer And Technologies Holdings Limited 20
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
g S E e,

For the six months ended 30 June 2014 H 2 =2 — U4 X A =+ H [E/~E A

4.

—=
=z

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group is organised into business
units based on their products and services and has three reportable
operating segments as follows:

(@) theintegration and solutions services segment that
primarily engages in the sales of computer networks and
system platforms, and the provision of system and network
integration, IT solutions development and implementation,
and related maintenance services;

(b)  the application services segment that primarily engages in
the provision of enterprise software applications and related
operation outsourcing, business process outsourcing and
e-business, and related maintenance services; and

(c) the investments segment that primarily engages in various
types of investing activities including, inter alia, property
investment for rental income and/or for capital appreciation
and treasury investment in securities for dividend income and
interest income and/or for capital appreciation.

Management monitors the results of the Group’s operating
segments separately for the purpose of making decisions about
resources allocation and performance assessment. Segment
performance is evaluated based on reportable segment profit,
which is a measure of adjusted profit before tax. The adjusted
profit before tax is measured consistently with the Group’s profit
before tax except that unallocated interest income, unallocated
other income and gains, net, foreign exchange differences, net,
corporate and other unallocated depreciation, corporate and other
unallocated expenses are excluded from such measurement.

Segment assets exclude tax recoverable, pledged bank deposits,
cash and cash equivalents, and other unallocated head office and
corporate assets as these assets are managed on a group basis.

Segment liabilities exclude tax payable, deferred tax liabilities and
other unallocated head office and corporate liabilities as these
liabilities are managed on a group basis.

There were no material intersegment sales and transfers during the
current and prior period.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

IR M ()

For the six months ended 30 June 2014 H 2= =%

4.

—ERA=THILEREA

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4, REFHERGE)
(CONTINUED)
(a) Operating segments (a) REDI
Group &
Integration and
Solutions Services Application Services Investments Total
SRRBALRIRE [E R RE )
2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013
“E-mE —T-=F ZB-RE —T--F ZE-ME —T-=5 ZE-mF —T-=%
(Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REER) (REER)  (REBR) (REER)  (REER)  (REER)  (REBR)  (REER)
HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx FET FEx FET FEx FET FEx FET
Segment revenue: WA
Sales to external customers ~ $EFIHNFRP 54,431 49,014 46,962 39,591 2,460 1,595 103,853% 90,200%
Otherincome and gains, net ~ Eft A R IEF 58 = 2,253 28 (29) (311) 71 (283)A 2,945A
Total Bt 54,431 51,267 46,990 39,562 2,149 2316 103,570 93,145
Segment results DEEE 9,685 8332 19,147 15,674 8,867 4626 37,699 28,632
Reconciliation:
Unallocated interest income 5,396A 4,205M
Unallocated other income
and gains, net 1950 -A
Foreign exchange
differences, net (5,355) 1,026
Corporate and other EREM
unallocated depreciation AAEHE (120) 87)
Corporate and other EREM
unallocated expenses AAEHER (12,925) (9,769)
Profit before tax KR AR 24,890 24,007

Computer And Technologies Holdings Limited
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
g S E e,

For the six months ended 30 June 2014 H 2 =2 — U4 X A =+ H [E/~E A

4.

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4, REFITER(E)
(CONTINUED)
(a) Operating segments (continued) (a) REII(E)
Group rEE
Integration and
Solutions Services Application Services Investments Total
ERRBALRRE [E AR RE aE
30June 31 December 30June 31 December 30June 31 December 30June 31 December
2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013
“E-mE —T-=F ZB-mE -—T--F ZB-MFE -T-=F CZE-MF —T-=%
~A +-A <A +-A ~A T=A <A TR
=+H = =+H =t-H =+H =t-H =+H =t+-H
(Unaudited) (Audited)  (Unaudited) (Audited)  (Unaudited) (Audited)  (Unaudited) (Audited)
(RggR) (2R (AEER) (B2 (E5%) (REER)  (LER)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000
TEx FET TEx FET FEx FET FEx FET
Segment assets SHEE 49,427 33773 40,440 38829 97,986 113763 187,853 186,365
Reconciliation: -
Corporate and other TERAM
unallocated assets ROMEE 335,665 325272
Total assets EEMBE 523,518 511,637
Segment liabilities AH8E 48,852 42,757 40,550 40939 555 558 89,957 84,254
Reconciliation: HE
Corporate and other TERAEM,
unallocated liabilities AofaE 20,739 14,965
Total liabilities AEEE 110,696 99,219

* This represents the consolidated revenue of HKS103,853,000
(2013: HK$90,200,000) in the condensed consolidated statement
of profit or loss.

A These comprise the consolidated other income and gains, net,
and foreign exchange differences, net, of HK$5,308,000 (2013:
HKS$4,729,000) and Nil (2013: HK$2,421,000) respectively in the
condensed consolidated statement of profit or loss.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

IR M ()

For the six months ended 30 June 2014 H 2= =%

4.

Computer And Technologies Holdings Limited

—ERA=THILEREA

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4, REFHER(HE)
(CONTINUED)
(a) Operating segments (continued) (a) REIIT(E)
Group REH
Integration and
Solutions Services Application Services Investments Total
SRRBALRIRE AR RE& faE
2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013
ZE-mE -—E-F ZE-@mF -T-=F ZE-RF -T-=F ZE-PmF -T-=F
(Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REEER) (REER) (REBR) (REBR) (REBR) (REER)  (REBR) (REER)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
FiET AT FET AT FET FET FET FET
Other segmentinformation: {13 & :
Net fair value gains on REMENTE
investment properties WaFE - - o - 7112 2558 7112 2558
Net fair value losses on BATESBHEAR
financial assets atfairvalue BT EELTE
through profit orloss BRFE - - - - (488) (505) (488) (50)
Depreciation & 250 273 191 231 47 47 488 551
Corporate and other EREM
unallocated depreciation RORTE 120 87
608 638
Impairment losses recognised/ F\E%FKHER,/ (B
(reversed) inthe statement  Z (A EEE*
of profit or loss, net* 33 (343) 70 (30) - - 103 (373)
Capital expenditure™ AR ) 20 149 37 - : 198 239
Corporate and other PEREM
unallocated capital FAMERR T
expenditure** 6,558 33
6,756 272

*%

Including impairment losses recognised in the condensed
consolidated statement of profit or loss attributable to the
integration and solutions services segment of HK$208,000 (2013:
Nil) and the application services segment of HK$91,000 (2013:
HKS76,000), respectively, and impairment losses reversed in the
condensed consolidated statement of profit or loss attributable
to the integration and solutions services segment and the
application services segment of HK$175,000 (2013: HK$343,000)
and HK$21,000 (2013: HKS106,000), respectively.

Capital expenditure consists of additions to property, plant and
equipment and including property, plant and equipment from the
acquisition of a subsidiary.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
g S E e,

For the six months ended 30 June 2014 H 2 =2 — U4 X A =+ H [E/~E A

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4, REHBER(E)
(CONTINUED)
(b) Geographical information (b) HEER
Group rEE
(i)  Revenue from external customers (i) XKENPREFZKA
Hong Kong Mainland China Total
BA HE A faxn
2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013
“E-mfE - CZBE-MFf —%-=f ZE-mF —T-=F

(Unaudited)  (Unaudited) ~(Unaudited)  (Unaudited) (Unaudited)  (Unaudited)
(REER) (REER) (RE8R)  (REER)  (RE8K)  (REER)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
T#7z FAT 2% AT &7 TET

Segment revenue: AHBA

Sales to external customers HETHAEP 88,382 72,023 15471 18177 103,853 90,200
The revenue information is based on the locations of WAB BT AR F FTE i &

the customers. HAE o

(i)  Non-current assets (i) HREBEE
30 June 31 December
2014 2013
—EZ—F —T-=F
NA=+H +-A=+—8H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REBEZ) (& 2H%)
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FET FEIT
Hong Kong a5 88,487 75,100
Mainland China A B A 9,344 9,495
97,831 84,595
The non-current asset information is based on the IEmBEEER NIREEFN
locations of assets and excludes financial instruments. E 25 - BRI ARET R
FBITE o
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

IR M ()

For the six months ended 30 June 2014 #{Z == — G/ A =+ H LN EA

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

(CONTINUED)

(c) Information about major customers

Revenues from external customers individually amounting to
10% or more of the Group's total revenue:

For the period ended 30 June 2014, revenues from a major
customer of HK$29,881,000 was derived from the integration
and solutions services segment.

For the period ended 30 June 2013, revenues from two major
customers of HK$23,077,000 and HK$9,601,000 were derived

from the integration and solutions services segment.

5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS, NET

Revenue, which is also the Group’s turnover, represents the
aggregate of the invoiced value of goods sold, net of trade
discounts, returns and business tax, where applicable; fees earned
from the provision of system and network integration, IT solutions
development and implementation, enterprise software applications,
and related operation outsourcing, business process outsourcing,
e-business and related services; fees earned from the provision of
maintenance services; gross rental income earned from investment
properties; and interest income earned from treasury investments

during the period.

Computer And Technologies Holdings Limited
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
g S E e,

For the six months ended 30 June 2014 H 2 =2 — U4 X A =+ H [E/~E A

5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS, NET 5.
(CONTINUED)

WA ~ H KA K s 88 ()

An analysis of revenue, other income and gains, net is as follows: WA~ Bt A R F BT T
For the six months ended 30 June

BEANA=1THIEANER

27

2014 2013
—E-mEF —T-=F
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REBER) (CREEEZ)
HKS$’000 HKS'000
FAET FET
Revenue ON
Sale of computer networks and system HEBKBEB R RGFTE
platforms, and the provision of system R RG4S SRR -
and network integration, IT solutions BRABEAATRER R
development and implementation, and it A M AR R E RS
related maintenance services 54,431 49,014
Provision of enterprise software R EEHER &
applications and related operation FEREEEINA - ETFRZINA) -
outsourcing, business process BFE 5 IR RABRBRE RS
outsourcing and e-business, and
related maintenance services 46,962 39,591
Gross rental income from investment "EMEZHSWARTER
properties and interest income from EIRE 2 A BHA
treasury investments 2,460 1,595
103,853 90,200
Other income and gains, net Htg A R W55
Bank interest income RITH WA 5,396 4,205
Dividend income from listed investments ~ FH#RE& Z B WA 296 312
Gain/(loss) on disposal of financial assets HERATFELEBEARZ
at fair value through profit or loss P EEWS (E18) (607) 162
Others Hith 223 50
5,308 4,729
e B R EEARAT



Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
g S B e )

For the six months ended 30 June 2014 #{Z == — G/ A =+ H LN EA

6. PROFIT BEFORE TAX

The Group's profit before tax is arrived at after charging/(crediting):

6. PBRBIADEF

AEE 2 BEADSEFEME GTA)T
(IE=3

For the six months ended 30 June

BEAA=1THILEANEAR

2014 2013

—E-mF —T—=%F

(Unaudited) (Unaudited)

(R&EX) (CREgEZ)

HK$’000 HKS'000

FET FET

Depreciation e 608 638

Equity-settled share-based RS RN RS

payment expense 544 387

Impairment of trade receivables FEWE B ERFORE 299 76

Reversal of impairment of trade receivables % [Bl e & 5 B8R Z0R(E (196) (27)

Reversal of trade receivables written off O e Y E 5 BRI - 4
Reversal of impairment of amounts due BB ERE 8% P R IBRE

from contract customers - (418)

Foreign exchange differences, net (& H Z58F5E 5,355 (3,447)

7. INCOME TAX

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5% (six
months ended 30 June 2013: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable
profits arising in Hong Kong during the period. Taxes on profits
assessable elsewhere have been calculated at the rates of tax
prevailing in the countries/jurisdictions in which the Group

7. FRBH

EBFEHIIRIBEHAREBEEZG
HERB RN HE R 165%(HE-_T—=
FERAZTAIEANER : 16.5%) 1EH B
1 o H i [ FERRBE Il 2 BIE VAR IR
REBELERMERRRIEERR

operates. HRABEE -
For the six months ended 30 June
BEARA=+THIEAREA
2014 2013
—F-—NF s =R
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(RBERK) (REeEZ)
HK$’000 HKS'000
FET FET
Group: REHE -
Current - Hong Kong BNER— &%
Charge for the period HAAFIA S 2,084 2,029
Current - Elsewhere BVER— E ftb it
Charge for the period HAFIES 1 227 104
Overprovision in prior years FFE L IREE - (95)
Deferred PRI 28 90
Total tax charge for the period BRAFRIE ST 4858 2,339 2,128
Computer And Technologies Holdings Limited 28 Interim Report 2014



Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
g S E e,

For the six months ended 30 June 2014 H 2 =2 — U4 X A =+ H [E/~E A

7.

INCOME TAX (CONTINUED)

On 5 March 2014, the Hong Kong Inland Revenue Department (the
“IRD") has issued a protective assessment to a subsidiary of the
Company demanding tax of approximately HK$2,260,000 for the
year of assessment 2007/08. An enquiry letter was issued to that
subsidiary on the same day regarding, inter alia, the nature and the
deductibility of certain expenditure/expenses. The subsidiary has
lodged an objection to the IRD against the protective assessment
and is in the process of gathering the requested information and
documents in support of the deduction claim. Accordingly, a tax
reserve certificate of approximate the demanding tax amount has
been purchased by the subsidiary in April 2014 at the request of the
IRD.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, it is not practicable
at this early stage to estimate reliably the outcome of the deduction
claim and therefore, the financial effect (including the amount
or timing thereof, if any) of the foregoing enquiry. However,
the directors believe that except for certain insignificant tax
adjustments, the effect of which has been reflected in the prior
year's profit or loss of the Group, and subject to availability of the
required evidence, the subsidiary has valid grounds to support
the deductibility of those expenditure/expenses. Accordingly, no
further provision for Hong Kong profits tax is considered necessary
at this stage.

DIVIDENDS

a. Subsequent to the end of the interim period, the Board has
determined that an interim dividend of 7 HK cents (2013: 6 HK
cents) in cash per share should be paid to the shareholders
of the Company whose names appear in the Register of
Members on Tuesday, 2 September 2014.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
g S B e )

For the six months ended 30 June 2014 #{Z == — G/ A =+ H LN EA

8. DIVIDENDS (CONTINUED) 8. RE(E)
b. Dividends attributable to the previous financial year, b.  EEERFEREEREL AT
approved and paid during the interim period. HRHARTIRAS o
For the six months ended 30 June
BEAA=t+HLAKEA
2014 2013
—E2-lmF —ET-=F
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REE&EX) (REgEEZ)
HK$’000 HKS'000
FET FET
Final and special dividends in respect of ~ JE# /& K& FA AR BRERRT R A
the previous financial year, approved B HEATBFEE 2 KB &
and paid during the interim period of 45 RI% B &A% A%0.097 T
HK$0.09 (2013: HK$0.09) per (ZE—=%F:009%87T)
ordinary share 22,003 21,978
Less: Dividend for shares held under JE ARIBEAR A E BRI G
the Company's restricted share REETEIEE 2’ D
award scheme FrigR% 2 (336) (393)
21,667 21,585
9. EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLETO 9. B RREERBREELEERER

ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE PARENT

The calculation of basic earnings per share amounts is based on
the profit for the period attributable to ordinary equity holders of
the parent, and the weighted average number of ordinary shares
of 240,555,491 (2013: 240,304,518) in issue during the period, as
adjusted to exclude the shares held under the restricted share
award scheme of the Company.

The calculation of diluted earnings per share amounts is based on
the profit for the period attributable to ordinary equity holders of
the parent. The weighted average number of ordinary shares used
in the calculation is the number of ordinary shares in issue during
the period, as used in the basic earnings per share calculation,
and the weighted average number of ordinary shares assumed to
have been issued at no consideration on the deemed exercise or
conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary shares granted under
the share option scheme of the Company and the deemed vesting
of all dilutive restricted shares of the Company awarded under the
restricted share award scheme of the Company into ordinary shares.

Computer And Technologies Holdings Limited
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

ISR AR (8)

For the six months ended 30 June 2014 H 2 =2 — U4 X A =+ H [E/~E A

9. EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO 9.

BRAEERRREEERAER

ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE PARENT

(CONTINUED)

The calculations of basic and diluted earnings per share are based

on:

Earnings

The calculations of basic and diluted earnings per share are based
on profit attributable to ordinary equity holders of the parent.

—~

&)

&7

FHEESRER REE AT PR 2R

BREANEFRN R AR EERK

BREEBFFE -

Number of shares
RS E B
2014 2013
—E-mEF —E—=F
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REEX) (REeEZ)
Shares R
Weighted average number of ordinary FIESREARZF FTABA
shares in issue during the period used in BT RARINE T
the basic earnings per share calculation 240,555,491 240,304,518
Effect of dilution — weighted average BEE T RARINETIHH
number of ordinary shares:
Restricted shares awarded under RIEAR N E) A R 6 () 22EET &)
the Company's restricted share 2 BRI G5
award scheme 1,292,788 1,837,314
241,848,279 242,141,832

10. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

10. % - BERRE

Group FEE
30 June 31 December
2014 2013
—ZET-lE —E—=F
ANB=+H +=-A=+—H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REER) (fe==Z)
HK$’000 HKS'000
FHET FET
Net book value, as at 1 January R—A—8 ' REE 5,244 5,880
Additions INE 6,756 532
Disposals (net book value) & (BREE) - (39)
Acquisition of a subsidiary (note 16) WiE—RM B A F (FizE16) - 23
Depreciation provided during the period  EA AT &8 & (608) (1,192)
Exchange realignment ME 5 (24) 40
Net book value, as at 30 June/ 7S i b
31 December TF=H=1+—8 ' &HE 11,368 5,244

— T ERHRE
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
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For the six months ended 30 June 2014 #{Z == — G/ A =+ H LN EA

11. GOODWILL 1. B8
Group rEH
HKS'000
TFET
At 31 December 2013 R-ZB—=H+=-HA=+-—H
Cost and carrying amount at 1 January 2013 RZE—=F—A—AKARERE 25,813
Acquisition of a subsidiary (note 16) WiE—RMW B F (FizE16) 3,398
Cost and carrying amount at 31 December 2013 RZE—=F+-"F=+—H
B K BRTENE 29,211
At 30 June 2014 R-ZB-—NEXA=+H
Cost and carrying amount at 1 January 2014 and R-E—NF—A—HBHK
30 June 2014 ZE-NEANA=ZTHRAREERE 29,211
12. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS 12. AIHHERE
Group REE
30 June 31 December
2014 2013
—E-mF ST-=E
nE===Ey == —F
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REEX) (fe=Z)
HK$’000 HKS$'000
F#ETT FEIT
Debt investments, at fair value BATEAEZEBIRE 17,505 39,973
Club membership debenture, at fair value  1Z AV EAE z @frefEs 2,100 2,100
19,605 42,073
Portion classified as current assets NERREEE D (7,512) (29,862)
Portion classified as non-current assets DERIEREEES S 12,093 12,211
During the period, the gross gain in respect of the Group’s available- BN BEEAEEREMEE A FE
for-sale investments recognized in other comprehensive income R A HERE 2 2S5 A197,00008 7T
amounted to HK$197,000 (2013: gross loss of HK$936,000). —E—=4% : £18/5936,000/57T) °
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For the six months ended 30 June 2014 H 2 =2 — U4 X A =+ H [E/~E A

13. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH

13. BAVERRSARZMKEE

PROFIT OR LOSS
Group AEE
30 June 31 December
2014 2013
—E-mF —T—=F
NA=+H +-A=+—H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REEZ) (e2=%)
HK$’000 HKS'000
FET FET
Debt investments, at market value IRTEAE 2 ERIEE 8,690 8,740
Listed equity investments in Hong Kong,  #ZTEFTE 2 &E EMBRAKE
at market value 8,807 9,245
17,497 17,985
Portion classified as current assets DERARBEESD (15,100) (15,569)
Portion classified as non-current assets DEAEREEELLD 2,397 2416

The debt investments were designated upon initial recognition
as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss as they are
managed and their performance is evaluated on a fair value basis,
in accordance with a documented risk management or investment
strategy, and information about the investments is provided
internally on that basis to the Group’s key management personnel.
Debt investment classified as a current asset at 30 June 2014 and 31
December 2013 was a debt with maturity date falls within one year
from the end of the reporting period.

The listed equity investments were all included under current assets
at 30 June 2014 and 31 December 2013 and were classified as held
for trading.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
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For the six months ended 30 June 2014 #{Z == — G/ A =+ H LN EA

14. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES

An aged analysis of the trade and bills receivables as at the end
of the reporting period, based on the invoice date and net of

14. BREZRRKEBREE

RERPEEER - BREFRFINE
W BRI A WIS Bt 2 PRk

provisions, is as follows: HranT
Group REE

30June 31 December
2014 2013
—E—F —E—=F
ANA=+H +=ZHA=+—H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(RE&EX) (%)
HK$’000 HKS'000
FET FET
Within 1 month —EAR 40,712 20,622
1 to 3 months —E==1{#A 4,315 1,447
4 to 6 months WM& EA 875 883
More than 6 months NEA M E 61 259
45,963 23,211

Computer And Technologies Holdings Limited

For system integration projects and the provision of maintenance
services and software development services, the Group's trading
terms with its customers vary from contract to contract or
depending on the specific arrangements with individual customers,
and may include cash on delivery, advance payment and on credit.
For those customers who trade on credit, the overall credit period
is generally within 120 days, except for certain projects with longer
implementation schedules where the period may extend beyond
120 days, or may be extended for major or specific customers. The
Group seeks to maintain strict control over its outstanding trade
receivables and overdue balances are reviewed regularly by senior
management. The Group does not hold any collateral or other credit
enhancements over these balances. Trade and bills receivables are
non-interest-bearing.
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For the six months ended 30 June 2014 H 2 =2 — U4 X A =+ H [E/~E A

15. TRADE PAYABLES, OTHER PAYABLES AND

15. BNESERNR HEARER

ACCRUALS FEET R
Group AEE

30 June 31 December
2014 2013
—E-mEF —E—=F
AA=+H +=-A=+—8H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(RBER) (FEZ)
HK$’000 HKS'000
FAET FET
Trade payables BB SRR 20,606 22,899
Other payables HALFE SRR 27,307 29,031
Accruals FEstROE 11,576 12,556
59,489 64,486

An aged analysis of the trade payables as at the end of the reporting

period, based on the payment due date, is as follows:

RBEMREAER - BNEZERFIRE
WK E 2 fREe DA T

Group AEE

30 June 31 December

2014 2013

—E-MF —E—=fF

AA=+H +=ZA=+—H

(Unaudited) (Audited)

(REEZ) (e&E=z)

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHET FET

Current BNER 15,469 19,756

1 to 3 months —==1@A4 3,650 2,025

4 to 6 months U EYN S 549 210

Over 6 months NEA E 938 908

20,606 22,899

The trade payables are non-interest-bearing and are normally FENRB BERIL B - —fRI%30KH]
settled on 30-day terms. (B 4555 o
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16. BUSINESS COMBINATION

On 31 May 2013, the Group acquired the entire equity interest
in Vitova Limited (“Vitova”). Vitova is engaged in the provision
of enterprise software applications and related operation. The
acquisition was made as part of the Group’s strategy to expand
the Group's application services business and its existing product
offering. The purchase consideration for the acquisition was in the
form of cash, with HK$1,000,000 paid at the acquisition date and
the remaining HK$600,000 paid on 11 November 2013.

The fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities of Vitova as at
the date of acquisition were as follows:

16.

eSS

AREER _T—=FRAA=1+—HY%E
SERERAR([Z2E ) 28 A#E
o BRI SFRHEEENFERRA
FAH o WA E A S B R AR
BEBLBAREFERBEZAEH
REGHETT - WBZBEREDURE
A Hp 1008 B e B B #x
- MB@ROBBETEN T —=F
T—A+—BXH -

SBEZUHENEERBBE A FHERK
BRHRWT

Fair value

recognised on

acquisition

Wz A EE

HKS$'000

FET

Property, plant and equipment (note 10) W - R MR E (FisE10) 23
Cash and bank balances R& RIRTTER 1,037
Trade receivables FEUE 5 BR 5K 1,497
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables FERFRIE - RE REMERRIR 801

Trade payables, other payables and accruals JERHE SERFR - EM R FUB R EETFUR (1,944)

Due to contract customers JERE #%E P RIA (111)

Deferred revenue EEUA (3,101)

Total identifiable net liabilities at fair value AR eEFEAE 2 AT E (1,798)
Goodwill on acquisition (note 11) Weig 2B (sE) 3,398
Satisfied by cash B 1,600

The fair values of the trade receivables and other receivables as at
the date of acquisition amounted to HK$ 1,497,000 and HK$801,000,
respectively. The gross contractual amounts of trade receivables
and other receivables were HK$2,203,000 and HK$801,000
respectively, of which trade receivables of HK$706,000 were
expected to be uncollectible.

Included in the goodwill of HK$3,398,000 recognised above was
the value of expected synergies arising from combining operations
of the Group and Vitova. None of the goodwill recognised was
expected to be deductible for income tax purposes.

Computer And Technologies Holdings Limited 36
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For the six months ended 30 June 2014 H 2 =2 — U4 X A =+ H [E/~E A

17. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS

(a)

(b)

— T ERHRE

As lessor

The Group leases its investment properties under operating
lease arrangements, with leases negotiated for terms ranging
from one to two years. The terms of the leases generally also
require the tenants to pay security deposits and provide for
periodic rent adjustments according to the then prevailing
market conditions.

At 30 June 2014, the Group had total future minimum lease
receivables under non-cancellable operating leases with its
tenants falling due as follows:

17. REHELH

(a)

EREAA

AEEREBEEMERHFHEHER
BEYE BEIHPN T —=
METE - HEGRR—REFRM
PxfREZSE - YARBER
RITmAEHAREES -

R-ZZ—MFERA=1H &K
ERFEEEEPRITN NIHAR
fEimZ N R EHEmMN A
‘Wz RERSRENT

Group REH

30 June 31 December
2014 2013
—E-mF =%
AA=+R +t-A=t+—H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REEZR) (fe=2%)
HKS$’000 HKS'000
FET FET
Within one year —FR 735 1,506
In the second to fifth years, inclusive E_EERF(BIEEEMT) 126 293
861 1,799

As lessee (b) EREBEA

The Group leases certain of its office properties under
operating lease arrangements. Leases for properties are
negotiated for terms ranging from one to four years.

At 30 June 2014, the Group had total future minimum lease
payments under non-cancellable operating leases falling due
as follows:

AREERBLEHELHFHER
ETMAEME - ZEWEMZ
EZHEMNF—EME -

R-ZTE—MOFERA=1H AL
B AR B H T 51 B IR i i 2 1 B
HEAZHEMN BREMN Z&KE
HEeBEWT

Group TEE
30June 31 December
2014 2013
—F-DF —T-=F
~A=+H +=ZA=+—H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REEERZ) (Fe&EZ)
HK$’000 HKS'000
FET T
Within one year G =217 4,717 2,513
In the second to fifth years, inclusive F_EFLF(BREEMRSF) 12,407 61
17,124 2,574
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18.

19.

Computer And Technologies Holdings Limited

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
In addition to the transactions, arrangements and balances
detailed elsewhere in these financial statements, the Group had the

following transactions with related parties during the period:

Compensation of key management personnel of the Group:

18.

BEALRS

BRI EMHRREMEHFL RS
R RAERIN  AEBERHREET T
FIBEALRS ¢
AEETEEEABZMEIT

For the six months ended 30 June

BEAA=tTHILEAEA

2014 2013

—E—F —E—=F

(Unaudited) (Unaudited)

(REER) (RE&EZ)

HKS$’000 HKS'000

FET TFHET

Short term employee benefits FEEAE B A 4,239 4,954

Equity-settled share-based MRS E AR (D

payment expense TRHX 344 200

Post-employment benefits BERRAE T 45 45
Total compensation paid to key SNFEEBABZ

management personnel e eE 4,628 5,199

FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

At the end of the reporting period, the carrying amounts of
the Group’s and the Company’s financial assets and liabilities
reasonably approximated to their fair values.

Management has assessed that the fair values of cash and cash
equivalents, pledged bank deposits, trade and bills receivables,
deposits and other receivables, trade payables and financial
liabilities included in other payables and accruals approximate to
their carrying amounts largely due to the short term maturities of
these instruments.

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are included
at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a
current transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced
or liquidation sale. The following methods and assumptions were
used to estimate the fair values:

The fair values of listed equity and debt investments are based on
quoted market prices.

The fair value of the available-for-sale investments are based on
available market prices.
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ISR AR (8)

For the six months ended 30 June 2014 H 2 =% —

19. FAIRVALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF

MEARA=+RIERER

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Fair value hierarchy

19.

The following tables illustrate the fair value measurement hierarchy
of the Group’s financial instruments:

Assets measured at fair value:

Group

As at30June 2014

Quoted prices

MBIARFERAFESH

ZRE(E)

DFEEREE

TREFMEEVETIARFEAEZ

BRI -

BAVEBZEE .

REH

R-FE—FEA=1H

Fair value measurement using

AFEFERRAUTEE

Significant

Significant

in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
EXABE BEAFUEE
SERTIGHRE WARE WARE
(E18) (5B2/8) (%83[E) st
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FET FET
Available-for-sale investments: AEHERE -
Club membership debenture eeEEs - 2,100 - 2,100
Debt investments BIRE 17,505 2 = 17,505
Financial assets at fair value BATELERARZ
through profit or loss: MBEE
Listed equity investments EBRAEE 8,807 - - 8,807
Debt investments BEBEE 8,690 - = 8,690
35,002 2,100 - 37,102

— T ERHRE
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19. FAIRVALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

Assets measured at fair value: (continued)

Group (continued)

As at 31 December 2013

19. MEIE’A${E&’D\$E%?&

(&)

D EEREEE)
BAVEFEZEE : (&)
REE(E)
R-F—=F+_HA=1+—H

Fair value measurement using

NHEFERAUT SR

Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
EATEHE BEAFUEER
SERTISRE WARE WARE
(%158) (%2/8) (%3/8) st
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FET FET
Available-for-sale investment: At HEIKE :
Club membership debenture ~ @& ES - 2,100 = 2,100
Debt investments BEFRE 39,973 - - 39,973
Financial assets at fair value BEAFELEERARZ
through profit or loss: MBEE
Listed equity investments AR E 9,245 = s 9,245
Debt investments BEEEE 8,740 = £ 8,740
57,958 2,100 - 60,058

The Company did not have any financial assets measured at fair
value as at 30 June 2014 and 31 December 2013.

Liabilities measured at fair value:

The Group and the Company did not have any financial liabilities
measured at fair value as at 30 June 2014 and 31 December 2013.

During the period ended 30 June 2014, there were no transfers
of fair value measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no
transfers into or out of Level 3 for both financial assets and financial
liabilities (Year ended 31 December 2013: Nil).

Computer And Technologies Holdings Limited
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For the six months ended 30 June 2014 H 2 =2 — U4 X A =+ H [E/~E A

20. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVESAND 20. B EREEEEREE

POLICIES

The Group's principal financial instruments include pledged bank
deposits and cash and cash equivalents. The main purpose of these
financial instruments is to finance the Group’s operations. The
Group has various other financial assets and liabilities such as trade
and bills receivables, deposits and other receivables, trade and
other payables, financial liabilities included in accruals, financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss, and available-for-sale
investments, which mainly arise directly from its operations.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments are
interest rate risk, foreign currency risk, credit risk, equity price risk
and liquidity risk. The board of directors reviews and agrees policies
for managing each of these risks and they are summarised below.

Interest rate risk

The Group’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates
relates primarily to the Group’s cash at banks and time deposits
with floating interest rates.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably
possible change in interest rates, with all other variables held
constant, of the Group’s profit before tax (through the impact on
floating rate bank balances and time deposits).
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20. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVESAND 20. BiIREKMETEEERBGE (B)

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Interest rate risk (continued) FIZR @B (48)
Group REE
Increase/
Increase/ (decrease)
(decrease) in in profit
basis points before tax
Eehgm BREE AR
(RA) g, Omd)

HKS'000

FEIT
As at 30 June 2014 R=-Z—MFEXA=1+H
Hong Kong dollar BT (25) (113)
United States dollar ETT (25) (29)
Renminbi (“RMB") ARE(TARKE]D (25) (588)
Hong Kong dollar BT 25 113
United States dollar =TT 25 29
RMB ARHE 25 588
As at 30 June 2013 R-ZE—=F,A=+H
Hong Kong dollar BIT (25) (120)
United States dollar =TT (25) )
RMB AR (25) (595)
Hong Kong dollar BT 25 120
United States dollar ETT 25 2
RMB ARHE 25 595

BRORES M SN - SN 5 B B A A 4 A ]

There is no impact on the Group’s equity except on the retained

Computer And Technologies Holdings Limited

profits. TE -
Foreign currency risk SIS L

The Group has transactional currency exposures. Such exposures
mainly arise from revenue generated and/or costs and expenses
incurred by operating units in currencies other than the units’
functional currencies.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the end of
the reporting period to a reasonably possible change in the RMB
exchange rates, with all other variables held constant, of the Group’s
profit before tax (due to changes in the fair value of monetary assets
and liabilities).
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20. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND BRREEEERBER(E)

POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Foreign currency risk (continued) SR ()
Group KEH
Increase/
Increase/ (decrease)
(decrease) in in profit
exchange rate before tax
ERLEH RRBE AR A
(TK) i CE)
% HKS$'000
TH#ET
As at 30 June 2014 R-Z—NFXA=1+H
If Hong Kong dollar weakens against RMB W THAREERE 5 2,337
If Hong Kong dollar strengthens against RMB i 7T 53, A R EEFHE (5) (2,337)
As at 30 June 2013 RZZE—=%"A=1H
If Hong Kong dollar weakens against RMB WETAARBIZE 5 3,204
If Hong Kong dollar strengthens against RMB {8 7T 4, A R EEFHE (5) (3,204)

There is no impact on the Group’s equity except on the retained
earnings.

Credit risk

The Group primarily trades on credit terms with recognised
and creditworthy third parties. It is the Group’s policy that most
customers who wish to trade on credit terms are to a certain
extent subject to certain credit verification procedures. In addition,
receivable balances are monitored by the Group’s management on
an ongoing basis.

The credit risk of the Group’s other financial assets, which
comprise pledged bank deposits, cash and cash equivalents, debt
investments and deposits and other receivables, mainly arises from
default of the counterparties, with a maximum exposure equal to
the carrying amounts of these instruments.

Since the Group primarily trades on credit terms with recognised
and creditworthy third parties, there is no requirement for collateral.

Concentration of credit risk are managed by customers/counter
party, by geographical region and by industry sector. At the end of
the reporting period, the Group had certain concentration of credit
risk as 62.2% (31 December 2013: 29.5%) of the total trade and bills
receivables of the Group were due from certain departments/units
of the Government of the HKSAR, the Group’s largest customer.

— P R R 43
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20. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND

20. MEEREEBERBER(HE)

POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Credit risk (continued)

Further quantitative data in respect of the Group’s exposure to
credit risk arising from trade and bills receivables are disclosed in
note 14 to the financial statements.

Equity price risk

Equity price risk is the risk that the fair values of equity securities
decrease as a result of changes in the levels of equity indices and
the value of individual securities. The Group is exposed to equity
price risk arising from individual equity investments classified as
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss - listed equity
investments in Hong Kong (note 13) as at 30 June 2014 and 31
December 2013. The Group's listed equity investments are listed on
the Stock Exchange and are valued at quoted market prices at the
end of the reporting period.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to every 10%
change in the fair values of the Group’s listed equity investments,
with all other variables held constant and before any impact on tax,
based on their carrying amounts at the end of the reporting period.

FERR (&)

BFRASERERE ZERRERRE
ARz EERR2E-TEENTH
B NSRRI 14K

R A E % E R

B {5 4% LB A= 46 PR P IR 2= 45 BRI 1 7
BEEENECEBRABZTLF 2 ATE
ARz ER - AEEZBRAERRBR
RE_Z—NFNA=Z+TER_Z—=
FrTZA=+T—BFESEARAZRATE
KEZARZUBEE—BBLMRA
BAE M1 NERIRARE - A5H
L IR E R LT - RS
HiMEE REmSRETE -

TREINEMBHBEBHRIS T E 2B
T RARFHERB ISR R - ARRRE
BEREE  AEELEWRARERHRSE
HREER 2 AT ESEE10%E - 15
FARE <BUEEE -

Carrying Increase/

amount (decrease)

of equity in profit

investments before tax

RAIRE 2 BRBL R A

REE i CRd)

HKS$'000 HKS'000

TFET FET
As at 30 June 2014 R-B-—NEXA=+H
Equity investments listed in Hong Kong: EEB LM 2RARE -

- Held-for-trading —FHEEE 8,807 881

As at 31 December 2013 R Bl = (S

Equity investments listed in Hong Kong: EEB LM z2RAIRE -

- Held-for-trading —FHEEE 9,245 925

There is no impact on the Group’s equity except on the retained

earnings.

Computer And Technologies Holdings Limited
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20. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVESAND  20. BiHEKREEBEREE (&)
POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Liquidity risk REBEE R
The Group's objective is to ensure there are adequate funds to REEZ BETDERERFEHE S AR
meet its contractual payments for financial liabilities in the short < B 52 A &Eﬁﬁzﬁﬁ‘%ﬁ{g EROENE
and long term. In the management of liquidity risk, the Group TIERTHECRERE REFER LM
monitors and maintains a level of cash and bank balances, and HERERARHERASEZEMS
time deposits deemed adequate by management to finance the B MIBTTES N EBRFEDR - WHIER
Group's operations and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash Eﬁé\ij‘biz/ﬁiﬂz_}ﬁzz%g o BREIE
flows. Cash flows of the Group are closely monitored by senior ERETYERAEEZIRERE o
management on an ongoing basis.
The maturity profile of the Group's financial liabilities at the end RREPEAER - AEERBEALYE
of the reporting period, based on the contractual undiscounted RN E 2 %A &SI R
payments, is as follows: K
Group EH
As at 30 June 2014 R-_ZE—MFA=+H
Less than 3 tolessthan
On demand 3months 12 months Total
=z+=
REREE LPR=EA BAR BEt
HKS’000 HKS$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FET FET
Trade payables FERTE SRR 15,469 3,650 1,487 20,606
Other payables H b e~ 8 - 27,307 - 27,307
Financial liabilities included in 5+ AJEZTFIE 2
accruals MBaE - 7,524 - 7,524
Guarantees given to banks for ~ FiANEEFAE 2 &5 T
performance bonds/ BRBLBELHRE
guarantees issued in relation ERMABRITRE
to certain contracts R
undertaken by the Group 2,818 - - 2,818
18,287 38,481 1,487 58,255

— PO R AR
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
g S B e )

For the six months ended 30 June 2014 #{Z == — G/ A =+ H LN EA

20. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND

21.

Computer And Technologies Holdings Limited

POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Liquidity risk (continued)
Group

As at 31 December 2013

20. MEEREEBERBER(HE)

REE = E kR (E)
REE
R-F—=F+-A=+—H

Less than 3tolessthan
On demand 3 months 12 months Total
Ei‘f’:
HENREE PR={EA &A A et
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
FEIT FET FET FETT
Trade payables FERT B SRR 19,756 2,025 1,118 22,899
Other payables H i e FRIE - 29,031 - 29,031
Financial liabilities included in st AJEET B BTG5 EE
accruals - 3,657 - 3,657
Guarantees given to banks for ~ FiANEEAEZE 2 AT
performance bonds/ BHIETEBELHRE
guarantees issued in relation ERMmMARITIRE 2
to certain contracts PR
undertaken by the Group 2,818 - - 2,818
22,574 34,713 1,118 58,405
Capital management BEREE

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management are to
safeguard the Group'’s ability to continue as a going concern and to
maintain healthy capital ratios in order to support its business and
maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group regularly reviews and manages its capital structure and
makes adjustments to it in light of changes in economic conditions
and the risk characteristics of the underlying assets. To maintain
or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend
payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue
new shares. The Group is not subject to any externally imposed
capital requirements. No changes were made in the objectives,
policies or processes for managing capital during the period ended
30 June 2014 and year ended 31 December 2013.

Capital of the Group comprises all components of shareholders’
equity.

APPROVAL OF THE INTERIM FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The interim financial statements were approved and authorised for
issue by the board of directors on 14 August 2014.
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Other Information
Hih &R

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 30 June 2014, the interests of the directors in the share capital
and underlying shares of the Company and its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(the “SFQ")), as recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”), were as follows:

Long positions in ordinary shares of the Company:

EERBROKREBRD 2EER KR

RIZE—NFERA=1TH  FEFNERFAK
HiloE B (E& R ESFMREGRDIEXVEL)
Z B K A A AR R R ZBAR IR R 5 S A
BIROI(TES MGG ) £35216 8 EFE
Z B Rt ARk AR IR BT A RHETT
EHRZHIEESTAN([FLETR ) BTG
RAEAINEBMAERXFAARRR (B2
e Fay Ul

EAREBRZHER

Number of shares held,
capacity and nature of interest

FEBBRHEBE - HoREREE

Percentage
of the
Directly Through Company'’s
beneficially controlled issued
owned corporation Total share capital
= RN
Note HiE EBZES 28T
Name of director EENE Kz Bl AT #BY REESH
Ng Cheung Shing R EB (@) 2,122,000 110,000,000 112,122,000 45.92
Leung King San, Sunny B 1,010,000 3 1,010,000 0.41
Lee Allen 22 280,000 = 280,000 0.11
3,412,000 110,000,000 113,412,000 46.44
Long positions in shares of an associated corporation: N—REREEEROZEHE :
Percentage
Number of shares of the
BB #E associated
Name of Relationship Directly Through corporation’s
associated with the Class of beneficially controlled issued
Name of director corporation Company shares owned corporation shares capital
O EEEEE
BEAQF __H= EB EROIRE
EEpE HEEE B8 ZB& igvig bzl BEER REZEHRA BOLE
Ng Cheung Shing Computer And Company’s Non-voting 1,750,000 3,250,000 N/A
REB Technologies subsidiary deferred - note fJ5E(b) TiEA
International PiN/N] ol BN
Limited it 2 &) BRI
Mt R G BR AR
Notes: FffaE -

(a) 110,000,000 shares were held by Chao Lien Technologies Limited (“Chao
Lien”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of C.S. (BVI) Limited. Mr. Ng Cheung Shing
was entitled to exercise or control the exercise of one-third or more of the
voting power at general meetings of C.S. (BVI) Limited, which in turn was
entitled to exercise or control the exercise of one-third or more of the voting
power at general meetings of Chao Lien. Accordingly, Mr. Ng Cheung Shing
was deemed, under the SFO, to be interested in all shares held by Chao Lien.

(b) 3,250,000 non-voting deferred shares were held by Chao Lien.

—T—UFR RS 47

(@)  C.S.(BVI) LimitedZ 2&ME QB BHEHE
R~ A (&5 ) 4548 110,000,000 f% % (5 e
RRBEAERERCS. (BVI) Limited Z IR A
@ FITESREHTE=S 2 —F A EZRE
¥+ MC.S. (BVI) Limited B G A BHEAL A
LT FITHE =S 2 — A ERE
o AL IREBEFEBFRBERD - KRBT
EWR BB IR 2 PR R A

(b)  7%3,250,0000% & 1% = #E B IE A% 1 T5 R B B 4
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Other Information (continued)

Httg®(#)

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES (CONTINUED)

Save as disclosed above, as at 30 June 2014, none of the directors had
registered an interest or short position in the shares or underlying shares
of the Company or any of its associated corporations that was required to
be recorded pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in the sections “Restricted share award scheme” below,
at no time during the period were rights to acquire benefits by means of
the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company granted to any
director or their respective spouse or minor children, or were any such
rights exercised by them; or was the Company, or any of its subsidiaries a
party to any arrangement to enable the directors to acquire such rights in
any other body corporate.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company operates a share option scheme (the “Scheme”) for
the primary purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible
participants who contribute to the success of the Group’s operations.
Details of the Scheme is set out in the Annual Report 2013.

No share option of the Company was granted, exercised, cancelled or
lapsed during the year.

RESTRICTED SHARE AWARD SCHEME

The Company adopted a restricted share award scheme (the “Award
Scheme”) on 22 May 2008 (the “Adoption Date”). Pursuant to the Award
Scheme, shares of the Company (the “Awarded Shares”) are granted
to eligible employees (including directors) of the Group until the 10th
anniversary from the Adoption Date. The Company shall also pay cash to
the appointed trustee company for its acquisition and holding upon trust
of the Awarded Shares for the benefit of these employees and directors.
The Awarded Shares will then be transferred to these employees and
directors upon vesting. The aggregate number of shares to be awarded
under the Award Scheme throughout its duration shall not exceed 10% of
the issued share capital of the Company from time to time.

Details of the Award Scheme and the shares awarded thereunder are set
out in the Annual Report 2013.

Computer And Technologies Holdings Limited
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Other Information (continued)

Hitn & (2)
RESTRICTED SHARE AWARD SCHEME (CONTINUED) BHIRFIR R BT EI(4F)
The following table illustrates the number of and movements of the TR AEARI A EZENETEIT8 T HEIRL D 2 &
Awarded Shares under the Award Scheme during the period. B & EEE) -
Number of Unvested Awarded Shares
AEBRBRHHUE
Weighted
Awarded Forfeited average
Name of category At 1 January during Vested during during At 30 June Vesting period of fair value
of participant 2014 the period the period the period 2014 Award date Awarded Shares per share
SEENER RZB-WF R-ZB-MF BRIETH
PR -A-A HREREH HrEHE  HRERk  KSA=tAH RiRmEH RERDHEH ﬂig
BT
Directors
£
Ng Cheung Shing 180,000 (120,000) 60,000 23 July 2008 30 June 2009 061
REH —TT\F t030 June 2015
+tAZ+=H Z—ZETAFESA=1H
E_E-RERA=TH
Lee Allen 60,000 (40,000) 20,000 23 July 2008 30 June 2009 061
FEiR —ZTN\E t0 30 June 2015
tAZ+t= ZTTNFRA=TH
E-T-RERA=TH
Lee Allen 250,000 250,000 12 August 2013 30 September 2014 158
TR === to 30 September 2018
NA+=ZB ZZT-mFHhA=1AH
E-Z-\ENA=TH
Cheung Wai Lam 500,000 500,000 14 January 2014 31 December 2014 1.88
RIER -z to 31 December 2018
—A+mA -
+=A=+-"H
22TN\§
+=A=+-
490,000 500,000 (160,000) 830,000
Other employees
HitfE&
In aggregate 120,000 (80,000) 40,000 23 July 2008 30 June 2009 0.61
5 —TTN\F t0 30 June 2015
+tA=Z+=H ZETAF A=tH
EZ-RERA=TAH
In aggregate 232,000 (116,000) (12,000) 104,000 1 March 2010 30 April 2011 1.35
@z —2%F t0 30 April 2015
=R—B Z—Z——4WA=+H
FE-RENA=TA
In aggregate 24,000 24,000 3 January 2011 31 December 2011 1.50
5 —F—— to 31 December 2015
—A=A —T——f
T-A=+-H
2_T—1F
S[pE =
In aggregate 108,000 108,000 15 November 2011 30 September 2012 1.20
o Z“T——%  t030September2016
S R IEN e
ZT-RFNA=THE
In aggregate 850,000 (170,000 (80,000) 600,000 28 March 2013 30 April 2014 1.45
? —T—=F t0 30 April 2018
ZAZtNR  ZE-MEmA=+H
22T \fWA=+A
In aggregate 100,000 100,000 12 August 2013 30 September 2014 1.58
3 == to 30 September 2018
NA+=B —Z-mFEHAA=1AH
E_Z-\ENA=TH
1,924,000 500,000 (526,000) (92,000) 1,806,000
—T—MFRERARE SRR EEER AR
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Other Information (continued)

Httg®(#)

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER PERSONS’
INTERESTS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 30 June 2014, the following interests of more than 5% of the issued

share capital and share options of the Company were recorded in the

FERRREMALTARSD REEK
0z fE

—FERA=1TH - WFRARRZEAR

fﬁ"ﬁfﬁi\lﬁéﬁ%} S5 MHIEIRDIFEBIRRNEFE

register of interests required to be kept by the Company pursuant to 2 #z5& 0 M AEANA B 2 241 TIR 2R 2 B B fe
Section 336 of the SFO: 5%A 2 R
Long positions: HE:
Percentage of
Number of the Company’s Number
ordinary issued share of share
Name of shareholder of the Company Notes ~ Capacity and nature of interest shares held capital  options held
FifE BARDRAERST Fis
ARARREAE £ Wit BARERME Bl E REABELL  BREHE
Chao Lien Technologies Limited (@) Directly beneficially owned 110,000,000 45.05 -
BERRARRR BERERER
C.S. (BVI) Limited (@) Througha controlled corporation 110,000,000 45.05 -
BBREHR
Puttney Investments Limited ("PIL") (b) Directly beneficially owned 29,148,938 11.94 =
ERESHA
Hutchison International Limited (“HIL") (b) Througha controlled corporation 29,148,938 11.94 =
BRXEHR
Hutchison Whampoa Limited (“"HWL") (b) Through a controlled corporation 29,148,938 11.94 -
M EHBRRR(ME]) BRXEHR
Cheung Kong (Holdings) Limited (“CKH") (b),(c)  Througha controlled corporation 29,148,938 11.94 -
RIEX(REB)ERAFA(RE]) BBREHR
Li Ka-Shing Unity Trustee Company Limited (b), (c) Through a controlled corporation 29,148,938 11.94 =
("TUT1") BRI
Li Ka-Shing Unity Trustee Corporation Limited (b),(c)  Througha controlled corporation 29,148,938 11.94 -
(“TDT1") BRI
Li Ka-Shing Unity Trustcorp Limited (“TDT2") (b), () Througha controlled corporation 29,148,938 11.94 -
BRXEHR
Li Ka-Shing (b),(c)  Througha controlled corporation 29,148,938 11.94 -
FEH BBREHR
Hui Yau Man Directly beneficially owned 26,782,000 10.97 =
FFHX BERELREAR
Webb David Michael Directly beneficially owned 3,540,000 145 -
BERELHEA
(d) Through a controlled corporation 8,740,000 3.58 -

Computer And Technologies Holdings Limited

BAZERHR

50

Interim Report 2014



Other Information (continued)

HitpEx(2)

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER PERSONS’
INTERESTS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES
(CONTINUED)

Notes:

(a)

(0

(d)

The interest was also disclosed as an interest of Mr. Ng Cheung Shing in the
section “Directors’ interests and short positions in shares and underlying
shares” of this report.

PIL is a wholly-owned subsidiary of HIL, which in turn is a wholly-owned
subsidiary of HWL. By virtue of the SFO, HWL and HIL were deemed to be
interested in the 29,148,938 shares of the Company held by PIL.

Li Ka-Shing Unity Holdings Limited (“TUHL"), of which Li Ka-Shing and Li
Tzar Kuoi, Victor are respectively interested in one-third and two-third
of the entire issued share capital, owns the entire issued share capital of
TUT1. TUT1 as trustee of The Li Ka-Shing Unity Trust, together with certain
companies which TUT1 as trustee of The Li Ka-Shing Unity Trust is entitled to
exercise or control the exercise of more than one-third of the voting power
at their general meetings, hold more than one-third of the issued share
capital of CKH. Subsidiaries of CKH are entitled to exercise or control the
exercise of more than one-third of the voting power at the general meetings
of HWL.

In addition, TUHL also owns the entire issued share capital of TDT1 as trustee
of The Li Ka-Shing Unity Discretionary Trust (“DT1”) and TDT2 as trustee of
another discretionary trust (“DT2"). Each of TDT1 and TDT2 holds units in
The Li Ka-Shing Unity Trust.

By virtue of the SFO, each of Li Ka-Shing, being the settlor and may being
regarded as a founder of DT1 and DT2 for the purpose of the SFO, TDT1,
TDT2, TUT1 and CKH was deemed to be interested in the 29,148,938 shares
of the Company held by PIL.

The 8,740,000 shares were held by Preferable Situation Assets Limited
(“PSAL"). PSAL was 100% directly owned by Mr. Webb David Michael and
accordingly, Mr. Webb David Michael is deemed to be interested in the said
shares held by PSAL.

Save as disclosed above, as at 30 June 2014, no person, other than the
directors of the Company, whose interests are set out in the Section
“Directors’ interests and short positions in shares and underlying shares”
above, had registered an interest or short position in the shares or
underlying shares of the Company that was required to be recorded
under Section 336 of the SFO.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION AND SALE OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, redeemed or
sold any of the Company’s listed securities during the reporting period.

— PO R AR
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Other Information (continued)

Httg®(#)

CODE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICE

The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard of corporate
governance within a sensible framework with an emphasis on the
principles of integrity, transparency and accountability. The board of
directors of the Company (the “Board”) believes that good corporate
governance is essential to the success of the Company and to the
enhancement of shareholders’ value.

The Board opined that the Company has complied with the code
provision set out in the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG code”) as
stipulated in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Listing Rules”) during the
reporting period except on the deviations noted below.

The CG code provision A.2.1 stipulates that the roles of chairman and
chief executive officer should be separate and should not be performed
by the same individual. In October 2013, Mr. Yan King Shun resigned as
executive director of the Company and chief executive officer (“CEQ”")
of the Group. Mr. Cheung Wai Lam has been appointed as an executive
director of the Company and the deputy CEO of the Group with effect
from 17 December 2013. Deputy CEO mainly focuses on certain business
operations and administrative functions of the Group, assists the
Board to formulate strategies for the Group and to make sure they are
implemented successfully. With the present board structure and scope of
business, the Board considers that there is no imminent need to appoint
CEO. However, the Board will continue to review the effectiveness of the
Group's corporate governance structure and will consider whether any
changes, including the appointment of CEO, are necessary.

The Company considers that sufficient measures have been taken to
ensure that its corporate governance practices are similar to those
provided in the CG Code.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out in Appendix 10 of
the Listing Rules as its code of conduct for dealings in securities of the
Company by the directors. Based on specific enquiry of the Company’s
directors, the directors have complied with the required standard set out
in the Model Code throughout the accounting period covered by the
interim report.

To comply with CG Code A.5.4, the Company has also adopted the Model
Code as its code of conduct for dealings in securities of the Company
by certain employees of the Company or any of its subsidiaries who are
considered to be likely to be in possession of unpublished price sensitive
information in relation to the Company or its securities.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has an audit committee which was established in
compliance with Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules for the purpose of
reviewing and providing supervision over the Group's financial reporting
process and internal controls. The audit committee comprises the three
independent non-executive directors and one executive director of the
Company. The Audit Committee has reviewed with the management
the accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group and
discussed internal controls and financial reporting matters related to the
preparation of the unaudited interim financial information for the six
months ended 30 June 2014.
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